
AGENDA 



1 

CITY OF HOPEWELL 
Hopewell, Virginia 23860 

CITY COUNCIL 
Jasmine E. Gore, Mayor, Ward #4 

Patience Bennett, Vice Mayor, Ward #7 
Debbie Randolph, Councilor, Ward #1 
Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward #2 

Johnny Partin, Councilor, Ward #3 
Janice Denton, Councilor, Ward #5 

Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor, Ward #6 

John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
Stefan M. Calos, City Attorney 

Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 

AGENDA 
PHONE: 541-2249 

FAX: 541-2248 

e-mail: info@hopewellva.gov 
www.hopewellva.gov 

rarrington@hopewellva.gov 

 Date: January 22, 2019 
2018 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING Closed Meeting:  5:30 p.m. 
Regular Meeting: 7:30 p.m. 

OPEN MEETING 

5:30 p.m. Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 

PROPOSED MOTION: To go into closed meeting for (1) discussion and consideration of the 
appointment of specific appointees of city council (boards, commissions, authorities, and 
committees); (2) discussion of specific appointees or employees of city council (city attorney); (3) 
discussion of the acquisition of real property for a public purpose, where discussion in an open 
meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of city council (Bank 
Street garages); (4) discussion and consideration of the investment of public funds where competition 
or bargaining is involved, where if made public, the financial interest of city council would be 
adversely affected (Cube Smart Storage); (5) consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff 
members or consultants pertaining to actual litigation, where such consultation or briefing in open 
meeting would adversely affect the negotiating or litigation posture of city council (employment 
litigation) and (6) consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by city council related thereto 
and regarding specific legal matters (council rules- seating, proclamations) requiring the provision of 
legal advice by such counsel in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) [two items] (3), (6), 
(7), and (8), respectively. 

Roll Call 
CLOSED MEETING 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO VIRGINIA CODE § 2.2-3712 (D): Were only public business 
matters (1) lawfully exempted from open-meeting requirements and (2) identified in the closed-meeting 
motion discussed in closed meeting? 

Roll Call 

PROPOSED MOTION: To amend/adopt agenda 

Roll Call 

mailto:info@hopewellva.gov
http://www.hopewellva.gov/


2 

REGULAR MEETING 

7:30 p.m. Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 

Prayer by Rev. Deidre Bryant of John Randolph Pastoral Care, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the 
Flag of the United States of America led by Councilor Partin. 

Consent Agenda 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by Council and will be approved or 
received by one motion in the form listed. Items may be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion 
under the regular agenda at the request of any Councilor. 

C-1 Minutes:  December 19, 2018; December 28, 2018 
C-2 Pending List:  
C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions: School Security February 12, 2019 
C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:  November and December Personnel 

Change reports attached 
C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:   
C-6 Routine Grant Approval:  
C-7 Public Hearing Announcement: February 26, 2019- Conditional Use Request and Zoning 

Ordinance amendments 
C-8 Information for Council Review: Minutes: Planning Commission - July 12, 2018, August 2, 

2018, August 16, 2018 & December 6, 2018; Recreation Commission - January 2, 2019; 
Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority- October 15, 2018 

C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations:  Cities of Opportunity Grant Presentation by 
Mayor Gore 

C-10 Additional Announcements: 

Public Hearings 
CITY CLERK: All persons addressing Council shall approach the microphone, give name and, if they 
reside in Hopewell, their ward number, and limit comments to five minutes. No person shall be permitted to 
address Council a second time until all others have been heard, and no one may speak more than twice on 
any subject in any one meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to Council as a body, any questions must be 
asked through the mayor only, and there shall be no discussion without permission of the mayor. Any person 
who makes personal, impertinent, abusive, or slanderous statements, or incites disorderly conduct in Council 
Chambers may be barred by the mayor from further audience before Council, and removed, subject to appeal 
to a majority of Council. (See Rules 405 and 406) 

None 
Communications from Citizens 

CITY CLERK: A Communications from Citizens period, limited in total time to 30 minutes, is part of the 
Order of Business at each regular Council meeting. All persons addressing Council shall approach the 
microphone, give name and, if they reside in Hopewell, their ward number, and limit comments to three 
minutes. No one is permitted to speak on any item scheduled for consideration on the regular agenda of the 
meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to Council as a body, any questions must be asked through the mayor 
only, and there shall be no discussion without permission of the mayor. Any person who makes personal, 
impertinent, abusive, or slanderous statements, or incites disorderly conduct in Council Chambers, may be 
barred by the mayor from further audience before Council, and removed, subject to appeal to a majority of 
Council. (See Rules 405 and 406.) 



3 
 

Unfinished Business 
 

UB-1 Council Standing Committees Appointments 
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 
UB-2 City Attorney Selection Process 
 

ISSUE: Council to discuss and vote on the method of hiring a new city attorney (i.e., use a hiring 
firm, handle internally), budget and costs associated with hiring of new attorney, where to advertise 
(if applicable), etc. 
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 
UB-3 Boards, Commissions, and Authorities Appointments 

 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 

Regular Business 
 
Reports of City Manager: 
 
R-1 Request for appropriation of $19,000 for purchase of Monitor Lifepak 15 Defibrillator 
 

ISSUE: The fire department is in need of a Monitor Lifepak 15 Defibrillator. The cost for the Monitor 
Lifepak is $39,000. To defray the cost, the fire department applied for and received a grant from the 
John Randolph Foundation in the amount of $20,000. The fire department is requesting appropriation 
of the remaining $19,000 from funds identified within capital projects.  
 

 MOTION:            
 
              
  Roll Call 
 
R-2 Request for appropriation of $150,000 towards purchase of new ambulance 
 

ISSUE: The fire department is in need of a new ambulance. The fire department applied for and 
received a grant from the Commonwealth of Virginia through the Rescue Squad Assistance Fund in 
the amount of $125,000 for use towards the purchase of a new ambulance. The fire department is 
requesting appropriation of the remaining $150,000 from funds identified within capital projects. The 
current Medic 3 ambulance is a 2004 model, which has cost approximately $60,000 in the past year. 



4 
 

The purchase of a new ambulance will allow the fire department to move the Medic 3 ambulance to 
a reserve role and eventually out of service.  
 

MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 
R-3 Request for appropriation of $10,000 for Riverside Park repairs 
 

ISSUE: When hurricane Michael swept through central Virginia on October 12, 2018, it caused 
damage to two athletic field light poles and several sections of the field fencing at Riverside Park. 
The cost to replace the light fixtures, light poles, and fencing is $14,473. The City is insured by VML, 
and this loss is covered; however, the deductible is $10,000. Staff is requesting funding for the 
amount of the deductible.   
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 
R-4 Recreation Trails Program (Riverwalk Phase II) 

ISSUE: The Recreational Trails Program (RTP) is an 80-20 matching reimbursement program, 
provided through the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), established to provide and maintain 
recreational trails. Staff is requesting that the City Manager be authorized to sign the project 
agreement for a grant award amount of $71,594, upon approval and review by the City Attorney, to 
endorse the RTP- Riverwalk Connection by Council Resolution, and to appropriate $14,318.80 from 
the FY 19 Economic Development salary savings to fund the local match requited for the Preliminary 
Engineering.      
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 
 
Reports of the City Attorney:   Council rules 
 
Reports of the City Clerk:  
 
Reports of City Council: 
 
Committees 
 
Individual Councilors   
 

 
 
 
 



5 
 

Citizen/Councilor Requests 
 

CCR-1 Gore Participatory Budgeting 
 

CCR-2 Gore Community Policing and Shooting Taskforce 
 

CCR-3 Partin Endorsement of the Chesapeake Bay Foundation’s Clean Water Blueprint 
 

CCR-4 Partin New City Borrowing/Bonding Policy 
 

CCR-5 Partin New Hopewell Small Business Procurement Policy 
 

 
 

Other Council Communications 
 

Adjournment 



 

CLOSED 
MEETING 

 



 
REGULAR 
MEETING 

 



 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 

 



 
MINUTES 



 

MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 19, 2018 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 A meeting of the Hopewell City Council was continued from the Tuesday, December 11, 2018 to 
Wednesday, December 19, 2018, at 6:30 p.m. in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 
North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Jackie Shornak, Mayor 
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor  
     Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Councilor (arrived 6:35 p.m.) 
     Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor (arrived 6:35 p.m.) 
     Janice B. Denton, Councilor  
     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor (arrived 6:34 p.m.) 
 
     John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
     Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager 
     Stefan M. Calos of Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 
     Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 
     Frazelle Hampton, Assistant City Clerk 
 
  ABSENT:  Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:35 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 

 
    Mayor Shornak   - present 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
    Councilor Holloway  - absent 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
    Councilor Denton  - present 
    Councilor Pelham  - present 
CLOSED MEETING 
 
 Councilor Pelham moved to go into closed meeting for (1) discussion and consideration of 
specific appointees of city council (boards and commissions); (2) discussion or consideration of the 
acquisition of real property for a public purpose, where discussion in an open meeting would adversely 
affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of city council (Riverview Inn and Suites);               
(3) discussion and consideration of the investment of public funds where competition or bargaining is 
involved, where, if made public initially, the financial interest of the city would be adversely affected 
(Cube Smart facility); (4) consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff members or consultants 
pertaining to actual and probable litigation, where such consultation or briefing in open meeting would 
adversely affect the negotiating or litigating posture of the public body (employment matter); (5) 
consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by city council related thereto and regarding specific 
legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by such counsel (independent contractor agreement, 
Charter amendments), in accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A), (1), (3), (6), (7), and (8) 
respectively.  The motion was seconded by Mayor Shornak. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes    
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 



DRAFT 
December 19, 2018 

(continuation of December 11, 2018) 
Regular Meeting 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

2 
 

   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
 
Motion passed 6-0 
 
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 
Council convened into open meeting at 8:12 p.m., and responded to the question pursuant to Virginia 
Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-meeting 
requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes    
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
 
Mayor Shornak requested a roll call, the result of which was: 
 
   Mayor Shornak   - present 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
   Councilor Holloway  - absent 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
   Councilor Denton  - present 
   Councilor Pelham  - present 
 
AMEND/ADOPT AGENDA 
 
 Councilor Denton moved to amend the agenda to add discussion regarding the proposed Charter 
amendment previously discussed.  Her motion was seconded by Mayor Shornak.  After discussion, Vice 
Mayor Gore made a substitute motion to approve the agenda as written. Her motion was seconded by 
Councilor Pelham. There was additional discussion. Mayor Shornak called for the vote seeking to end 
debate.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - No 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - No 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - No 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - No 
 
Motion failed 4-2 



DRAFT 
December 19, 2018 

(continuation of December 11, 2018) 
Regular Meeting 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

3 
 

Discussion continued. Council voted on Vice Mayor Gore’s substitute motion. Upon the roll call, the vote 
resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes    
   Councilor Denton  - No 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - No 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
 
Motion passed 4-2 
 
PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF   
AMERICA 
 
Mayor Shornak called the meeting to order, and thanked all for attending.  The prayer was led by 
Chaplain Pamela Cooper of the John Randolph Pastoral Care, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the 
Flag of the United States of America, led by Mayor Shornak. 
 

Consent Agenda 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by Council and will be approved or 
received by one motion in the form listed. Items may be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion 
under the regular agenda at the request of any Councilor. 
 
C-1 Minutes:  All minutes not yet approved by Council 
C-2 Pending List:  Provided 11-27-18 
C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions:  
C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:  Financial Report 
C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:   
C-6 Routine Grant Approval:  
C-7 Public Hearing Announcement:  
C-8 Information for Council Review: Minutes: Architectural Review Board-October 22, 2018; 

Appomattox Regional Library-December 4, 2018; HRHA September 10, 2018; Downtown Design 
Review Committee November 8, 2018  

C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations: NLC, VML and Neighborhood Revitalization 
presentation by Councilor Luman-Bailey [not done]; Cities of Opportunity Grant presentation by 
Vice Mayor Gore [not done]; City Website presentation by Dr. Concetta Manker [not done]; 
DMV Select Award presentation by Commissioner Debra Reason; presentation to outgoing 
Councilors  

C-10 Additional Announcements: City Council Reorganizational Meeting- January 2, 2019 
 
 Councilor Pelham moved to approve the Consent Agenda, which motion was seconded by Vice 
Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes    
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 



DRAFT 
December 19, 2018 

(continuation of December 11, 2018) 
Regular Meeting 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

4 
 

   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
Motion passed 6-0 
 
Upon additional discussion, Mayor Shornak and Councilor Denton determined that they had voted in 
error, and requested permission to change their votes, which permission was granted.  Upon the roll call, 
the final vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes    
   Councilor Denton  - No 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - No 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
Motion passed 4-2 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
PH-1 Riverview Inn and Suites – At 9:45 p.m. Mayor Shornak opened the public hearing. There was 
no one signed up but Eliot Eliades, resident of 900 Mansion Drive came forward and spoke in support 
of the proposed sale. Joan Gosier of Ward 2 spoke regarding appraised value of property. Mr. Patel, 
owner of the Riverview Inn and Suites, fielded questions. Mayor Shornak closed the public hearing at 
9:46 p.m. Councilor Denton moved to proceed with the purchase per recommendation of Staff and to 
purchase the property at 711 West Randolph Road, further identified at parcel #066-0875 for the price 
of $1.1 million dollars. Her motion was seconded by Councilor Mayor Shornak.  There was discussion. 
Mayor Shornak called for the vote and to end debate.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - No 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - No 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - No 
Motion failed 3-3 
 
There was additional discussion, then Council voted on Councilor Denton’s motion.  Upon the roll call, 
the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - No 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - No 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - No 
 
Motion failed 3-3 



DRAFT 
December 19, 2018 

(continuation of December 11, 2018) 
Regular Meeting 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

5 
 

MOTION TO EXTEND 
 
 Councilor Luman-Bailey moved to extend the meeting beyond the 3-hour deadline (10:30 p.m.) 
The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes    
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
Motion passed 6-0 
 
PH-2 Amendment to Sec. 4 of Chapter IV of the City’s Charter – Public hearing to solicit citizen 
comments on the adoption of the Legislative Priorities and proposed Charter amendment to Sec. 4 of 
Chapter IV of the Charter. Mayor Shornak opened the public hearing at 10:34 p.m.  No one was signed up 
to speak and no one came forward to speak. Mayor Shornak closed the public hearing at 10:34 p.m.  
Councilor Pelham moved to adopt the resolution as related to the Legislative Priorities and the proposed 
Charter amendment. Her motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Gore.  Discussion ensued.  Mayor Shornak 
called for the vote and to end debate.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
Motion passed 6-0 
 
 Council then voted on Councilor Pelham’s motion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes    
   Councilor Denton  - No 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - No 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
Motion passed 4-2 
 

Communications from Citizens 
CITY CLERK: A Communications from Citizens period, limited in total time to 30 minutes, is part of 
the Order of Business at each regular Council meeting. All persons addressing Council shall approach 
the microphone, give name and, if they reside in Hopewell, their ward number, and limit comments 
to three minutes. No one is permitted to speak on any item scheduled for consideration on the regular 
agenda of the meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to Council as a body, any questions must be asked 
through the mayor only, and there shall be no discussion without permission of the mayor. Any person 
who makes personal, impertinent, abusive, or slanderous statements, or incites disorderly conduct in 



DRAFT 
December 19, 2018 

(continuation of December 11, 2018) 
Regular Meeting 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

6 
 

Council Chambers, may be barred by the mayor from further audience before Council, and removed, 
subject to appeal to a majority of Council. (See Rules 405 and 406.)  
 
Eliot Eliades spoke to Council regarding time management. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

UB-1 Hopewell Redevelopment & Housing Authority (HRHA) - Councilor Denton moved to grant 
HRHA’s request to rezone property identified as parcels 042-0095, 042-0195, and 042-0252, from R-3 
Residential Medium Density District and B-3, Corridor Development District to R-4, Residential. Her 
motion was seconded by Mayor Shornak. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - No 
   Councilor Denton  - Yes 
   Councilor Pelham  - No 
   Mayor Shornak   - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - No 
Motion failed 3-3 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN 
 
 Councilor Denton moved to adjourn. Her motion was seconded by Mayor Shornak. Upon 
discussion, Vice Mayor Gore moved for Council to hear items R-1, R-4, R-5 and the presentation to 
Council. Her motion was seconded by Councilor Pelham. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes    
   Councilor Denton  - No 
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Mayor Shornak   - No 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
Motion passed 4-2 
 
Mayor Shornak left at midnight.  At 12:06 a.m. Councilor Denton asked to be excused and also left the 
meeting. 
 
  



DRAFT 
December 19, 2018 

(continuation of December 11, 2018) 
Regular Meeting 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

7 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS 
Reports of City Manager: 
 
R-1 VCU Performance Review Contract – Vice Mayor Gore moved to approve an appropriation to 
complete and Eficiency and Technology Review Study in the FY19 budget. Her motion was seconded by 
Councilor Zevgolis. Councilor Pelham amended the motion to add that VCU would report to the Mayor 
as well as to Council. Councilor Zevgolis seconded the amendment. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes    
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - No 
 
Motion passed 3-1 
 
Councilor Luman-Bailey moved to amend the agenda to add items R-2 and R-3 to be heard. Stefan Calos  
opined that it would take 2/3 of Council to approve an amendment to the agenda, but that Council could 
waive that rule.  Councilor Pelham moved to waive the rule requiring 2/3 vote of council to amend the 
agenda. Her motion was seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes    
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
 
Motion passed 4-0 
 
R-4 Virginia First Cities 2019 Legislative Program – Councilor Luman-Bailey moved to approve 
the finalized Virginia First Cities 2019 Legislative Program, which motion was seconded by Vice Mayor 
Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes    
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
Motion passed 4-0 
 
R-5 Hopewell Water Renewal Capital Budget – Councilor Zevgolis moved to approve the City of 
Hopewell Water Renewal Department using $1,100,000 from Outside Treatment Revenue to fund the 
Return Activated Sludge Motor Control Center project. His motion was seconded by Councilor Luman-
Bailey. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes    
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - No 
Motion passed 4-0 



DRAFT 
December 19, 2018 

(continuation of December 11, 2018) 
Regular Meeting 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

8 
 

AMEND AGENDA 
 
 Councilor Pelham moved to add items R-2 and R-3 to be heard on the agenda. Her motion was 
seconded by Vice Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes    
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
Motion passed 4-0 
 
R-2 Amend portions of Chapter 6 (Animals and Fowl) of the City Code – Councilor Luman-
Bailey moved to update Chapter 6 of the City Code and make it compliant with City Code. Vice Mayor 
Gore seconded the motion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes    
   Councilor Pelham  - No 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
Motion passed 3-1 
 
R-3 Appropriation of DMV Select Funds – Councilor Pelham moved to approve the request from 
the Treasurer and Commissioner of Revenue seeking appropriation of 80% (40% each) of DMV select 
funding ($6,767.25 each for 2017 and $6,843.46 each for 2018). Councilor Zevgolis seconded the motion. 
Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
   Councilor Zevgolis  - Yes 
   Vice Mayor Gore  - Yes    
   Councilor Pelham  - Yes 
   Councilor Luman-Bailey - Yes 
Motion passed 4-0 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 At 12:25 a.m. motion was made by Councilor Pelham and seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey 
to adjourn.  All council responded “aye” to the question. 
      
      /s/ Jackie Shornak    
       Jackie Shornak, Mayor 
 
 
/s/ Ronnieye L. Arrington  
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  
       



December 28, 2018 
Special Meeting 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL HELD DECEMBER 28, 2018 

A Special Meeting of Hopewell City Council, was held Friday, December 28, 2018, at 5:00 p.m. 
in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 

PRESENT: Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor  
Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor (arrived at 5:01 p.m.) 
Janice Denton, Councilor 
Anthony Zevgolis, Councilor 
Christina Luman-Bailey, Councilor 

John Altman, Jr., City Manager 
Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager 
Stefan M. Calos of Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 

ABSENT: Frazelle Hampton, Assistant City Clerk 

ROLL CALL 

Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 5:02 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 

Mayor Shornak  - present 
Vice Mayor Gore - present 
Councilor Zevgolis - present 
Councilor Holloway  - present 
Councilor Denton - present 
Councilor Pelham - present 
Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 

R-1 Riverside Inn and Suites (a/k/a Riverview Inn and Suites) – Charles Dane, Assistant City 
Manager, gave a brief presentation. Councilor Luman-Bailey spoke and explained her reason for 
reconsidering.  Councilor Luman-Bailey made a motion to reconsider and renew the acquisition of the 
former Evergreen Motel (now Riverside Inn and Suites a/k/a Riverview Inn and Suites), located at 711 
West Randolph Road, and further identified as parcel #066-0875 with new price of exactly one million 
dollars ($1,000.000.00). The motion was seconded by Councilor Denton. Councilor Pelham objected to 
formation of wording of the motion made by Councilor Luman-Bailey.  

Councilor Luman-Bailey amended the motion to renew the previous motion as modified. The 
motion was seconded by Councilor Denton. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

Councilor Zevgolis - no 
Vice Mayor Gore - no 
Councilor Denton - yes 
Councilor Pelham - no 
Mayor Shornak  - yes 
Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 



December 28, 2018 
Special Meeting 

 
    Councilor Holloway  - no  
Motion failed 4-3 
 
The discussion continued. Councilor Pelham expressed concerns regarding the city losing money. Mr. 
Dane provided follow-up to Councilor Pelham’s concerns. Councilor Luman-Bailey spoke on the 
difference between appraised and assessed value. Councilor Denton spoke in favor and felt it was a 
wonderful opportunity. Mayor Shornak also spoke in favor of the deal. Councilor Pelham made a motion 
to call for the vote to end debate. The motion was seconded by Councilor Denton. Upon the roll call, the 
vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - no 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - no 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - no 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - no  
    Councilor Holloway  - no  
Motion failed 5-2 
 
Debate and discussion continued. Vice Mayor Gore spoke about changes and the outcry of cost. 
Councilor Zevgolis expressed concerns about contract and lack of support from the public. Councilor 
Denton spoke in favor of the agreement once again.  Councilor Zevgolis made a motion to call for the 
vote. The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - no 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - no 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - no  
    Councilor Holloway  - yes  
Motion passed 4-3 
 
 
 
 ADJOURN 
 
 At 6:10 p.m., motion was made by Mayor Shornak, and seconded by Councilor Denton to adjourn. 
All councilors agreed to adjourn by saying “aye” in unison. 
 
 
 
 
       
       /s/     
       Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
 
/s/     
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  
       



ROUTINE 
APPROVAL 
OF WORK 
SESSIONS 

February 12, 2019



 

PERSONNEL 
CHANGE 
REPORT 



 

 

DATE:  January 7, 2019 

TO:  The Honorable City Council 

FROM:  Michelle Ingram, Human Resources Specialist  

SUBJECT: Personnel Change Report – November 2018 

 

ADDITIONS (Regular FT and PT positions only) 

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
CHIASSON, TAYLOR POLICE PT ANIM CONT CUST 11/26/2018 
CLEMENT, SAMUEL SHERIFF PT SHERIFF DEPUTY 11/28/2018 

ENNAS, JOSEPH WATER RENEWAL SR ELEC & INST TECH  11/07/2018 
LILLY, MICALAH POLICE PT ANIM CONT CUST 11/26/2018 

MITCHELL, CATHERINE RECREATION PT ATH SITE ASST 11/21/2018 
MOORE, CAMERON  CITY MANAGER YTH COORDINATOR 11/19/2018 
WHEELER, SHANTAE HEALTHY FAMILIES FAM SUPP SP 11/27/2018 

 

SEPARATIONS 

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
CALDWELL, GRAYSON FIRE FIREFIGHTER/ALS 11/15/2018 

DIX, EDWARD WATER RENEWAL ELEC & INST TECH III 11/01/2018 
POWERS, ANDREW RECREATION SR REC MAINT SPEC 11/01/2018 

RECTA, MINA RENEWAL SCADA ADMIN 11/22/2018 
ROBERTSON, JESSE  WATER RENEWAL WWT OPER I 11/01/2018 

ROBINSON,  MELODY RECREATION PT CUST SVC AGNT 11/16/2018 
 
 
 
 
March Altman, City Manager     Concetta Manker, IT Director 
Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager   Jay Rezin, IT 
Jennifer Sears, Interim HR Director   Carol Scarbrough, Parks & Rec   
Dave Harless, Risk & Safety Coordinator  Kim Hunter, Payroll 
Debbie Pershing, Administrative Services Manager 
Michael Terry, Finance Director 
Dipo Muritala, Assistant Finance Director 

 
  



 

 

DATE:  January 7, 2019 

TO:  The Honorable City Council 

FROM:  Michelle Ingram, Human Resources Specialist  

SUBJECT: Personnel Change Report – December 2018 

 

ADDITIONS (Regular FT and PT positions only) 

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
COSTLEY, KELCEY FIRE ALS/FIREFIGHTER 12/05/2018 
DUMAS, LAUREN FIRE ALS/FIREFIGHTER 12/05/2018 

GARRETT, WESLEY  WATER RENEWAL WWT OPER TRAINEE 12/19/2018 
HOUTS, THOMAS FIRE ALS/FIREFIGHTER 12/05/2018 
PRICE, HEATHER FIRE ALS/FIREFIGHTER 12/05/2018 

REDFEARN, JAMES  SHERIFF PT SHERIFF DEPUTY 12/19/2018 
SUMMA, ASHLEY RECREATION PT CUST SVC AGT 12/19/2018 

 

SEPARATIONS 

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
ATKINS, KEEBA SOCIAL SERVICES FAM SERV SPEC I 12/13/2018 

BURT, JENNIFER DEVELOPMENT EXEC ASST 12/03/2018 
CHIASSON, TAYLOR POLICE PT ANIM CONT CUST 12/06/2018 

FRANKLIN, ANTHONY POLICE POLICE OFFICER 12/19/2018 
LILLY, MICALAH POLICE PT ANIM CONT CUST 12/06/2018 

PULLEY, ANTHONY POLICE POLICE SGT 12/03/2018 
 
 
 
 
March Altman, City Manager     Concetta Manker, IT Director 
Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager   Jay Rezin, IT 
Jennifer Sears, HR Director    Carol Scarbrough, Parks & Rec   
Dave Harless, Risk & Safety Coordinator  Kim Hunter, Payroll 
Debbie Pershing, Administrative Services Manager 
Michael Terry, Finance Director 
Dipo Muritala, Assistant Finance Director 

 
  



 

FINANCIAL 
REPORT 

 

























PUBLIC HEARING 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

February 26, 2019



  

INFORMATION 
FOR COUNCIL 

REVIEW 
 





















































RECREATION COMMISSION MEETING SUMMARY 
Wednesday, January 10, 2018 
Hopewell Community Center 

 
 
 
Present:  Faithea Foster, Patrick Plourde  
 
Absent:  Terence Doctor, Janelle Taylor, Anthony Sylvester 
 
Staff:  Aaron Reidmiller, Arlethia Dearing 
 
Guests: None 
 
  
With only two members of the Recreation Commission present, a formal meeting was not 
called to order.  Mr. Reidmiller, Director of Recreation and Parks, provided the following 
report to the members who were present.   
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Reports of Staff 
 
Programs 
 
Holiday Boat Parade-The event was well-attended despite rainy conditions.  Hopewell is the 
only locality offering a boat parade with the cancellation of the James River Parade of Lights.  
Traffic coming into the marina had to be stopped because the area reached its maximum 
capacity.  The department hopes to continue to expand viewing opportunities with the 
involvement of the National Park Service at City Point and Anchor Point Marina to alleviate 
crowding at the Hopewell City Marina in 2019.   
 
Light Up the Night-This year’s Light Up the Night parade featured over 80 different 
organizations (the largest in recent history).  The event was very well attended due to warm 
weather conditions.  The parade was followed by the grand illumination of the Ashford Civic 
Plaza and activities throughout the downtown area.  The activities downtown were more 
impressive this year due to the presence of businesses like Guncotton Coffee and Haley’s 
Honey Meadery.   
 
Winter Wonderland Pop-Up Program-To fill the void between the large holiday events and 
the actual Christmas holiday, the department offered a “pop-up” program for children ages 6 
and under at the Hopewell Community Center.  The Winter Wonderland event featured a 
walking trail of more than 30 inflatable holiday characters, miniature snow plows and fake 
snow, snowball making craft activity, snacks/drinks, and visits with Santa and Mrs. Claus.  
The event attracted just under 150 persons and received a great deal of positive praise from 
attendees.  It will be offered as a regular program in 2019.   
 
Capital Projects 
Hopewell Riverwalk-The Riverwalk project Phase I is currently under construction.  The 
timber walkway is about 50% complete at this time and the contractor is making good 
progress.  Weather has been a slight hindrance but progress continues.  Construction should be 
completed by the end of February and a grand opening will be set for early spring.  Phase II of 
the Riverwalk has been funded in the amount of $443,000 through the Department of 

  
  

Recreation and Parks 
 

100 W. City Point Road 
Hopewell, VA  23860 

 
(804) 541-2353 

(804) 541-2464 (fax) 
 

www.hopewellva.gov 



Conservation and Recreation Trails program.  Phase II of the Riverwalk will connect Phase 1 
of the project to the Hopewell City Marina.  The Riverwalk will originate at City Park.   
 
Woodlawn Park-The Woodlawn Park renovation project has been heavily impacted by wet 
conditions.  Although all of the major site amenities (playground, fitness equipment, and 
picnic pavilion) have been installed, the grounds and paved trails are incomplete.  Wet 
conditions and cold weather have prevented paving operations for all of the park walking 
paths.  As soon as the weather provides optimal conditions, the project will be completed.  A 
grand opening is planned for early spring.   
 
 
Special Recognition 
VRPS Annual Conference-The Department was recognized at the Virginia Recreation and 
Park Society Annual Conference in November for several projects and programs 
offered/completed in 2017.  The Department received the Best New Program Award for the 
Wonder City Ice Skating Rink, the Best New Park Renovation Award for the City Park 
Improvement Project, and a special recognition for the design of the Woodlawn Park 
renovation as part of the VRPS Promotes Play and Recreation Initiative.  A record 114 
applications were received for 14 award categories from departments across the state.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Spring Programs-Mr. Reidmiller presented Commission members with copies of the new 
Spring Activity Guide.  The guide is available online via the department’s website and social 
media platforms, as well as in person at the Hopewell Community Center and other public 
buildings throughout the City.  The guide features program information for January through 
early May.   
 
New Website-Mr. Reidmiller provided a presentation on the department’s newly revised 
webpage.  With approval from the City’s website committee, the department created its own 
webpage that is linked from the City website.  The new webpage offers a more user-friendly 
experience and allows the department to update information with better efficiency and 
frequency.  Mr. Reidmiller explained the contents of the webpage and its features, including 
direct links to online registration for most of the department’s spring programs.  The new 
webpage can be viewed at www.hopewellrecandparks.com or by clicking the link on the City 
of Hopewell website.   
 
Budget Update-Mr. Reidmiller explained that the budget entry process had begun and that 
departments had recently been provided instructions for how to make requests for personnel, 
operating increases, and capital projects.  Several priority capital projects were discussed, 
including the renovation of the Carter Woodson basketball courts and paving at Mathis Park.  
Priorities are being re-evaluated for all projects that are scheduled to be completed in the next 
five years.  A more detailed discussion will be held at the February Commission meeting.   
 
Annual Report and Presentation-Staff is finalizing details and statistics for the 2018 Annual 
Report for the department.  The report will be presented to Commission members at the 
February meeting and presented to City Council at the February 26 meeting.   
 
Chair and Vice Chair Appointments-Appointments could not be made due to lack of a 
quorum.  If possible, appointments will be made at the February meeting of the Recreation 
Commission.

http://www.hopewellrecandparks.com/






PROCLAMATIONS 
§ 

RESOLUTIONS  
§ 

PRESENTATIONS 



 
  
 COMMUNICATIONS   
     FROM CITIZENS 

 



 
UNFINISHED 

BUSINESS 
 

 



 
UB-1 

 



2019 – 2021 
City Council Standing Boards and Committees 

(City Council and City Staff Members only) 

Board Members 
Chamber of Commerce Liaison Councilor 

CDBG – Community Development Block Grant Councilor – Ward 1 
Councilor – Ward 2 
Councilor – Ward 6 
Councilor – Ward 7 
Staff: Tevya Griffin 

Crater Planning District Commission Councilor 
Councilor 
John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 

CLEO Mayor 

Ethics Committee Councilor 
Councilor 
Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 

Finance Committee Councilor 
Councilor 
Michael Terry, Finance Director 
John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 

Historic Preservation Committee Councilor 
Councilor 
College of William & Mary member 
ARB member 
National Park Service member 
Historic Hopewell Foundation member 
At large citizen  
At large citizens 
Tevya Griffin 
Aaron Reidmiller 
Department of Tourism 



2 
 

Board Members 
Investment Policy Committee Mayor 

Joan Gosier, Treasurer 
Debbie Reason, Commissioner of 
Revenue 
Michael Terry, Finance Director 
John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
 

Law Library Committee 
 

Councilor 
Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 
Rick Newman, Commonwealth Atty 
Circuit Court Judge 
Tamara Ward, Circuit Court Clerk 
 

Legislative Committee Councilor 
Councilor 
John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 
Staff: Herbert Bragg 
 

Metropolitan Planning Organization Councilor 
Staff: Johnnie Butler 
 

National Park Service Waterfront Committee Councilor 
Councilor 
Staff: Aaron Reidmiller 
 

Resource Conservation & Development Council Councilor 
Councilor 
 

Riverside Community Corrections Board John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
Kamran Afzal, Police Chief 
Mary K. Martin, Esquire 
Nat Troth 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

Board Members 
School Board/Council Working Group Councilor 

Councilor 
Nelson G. Cuffey, School Board 
Wesley Joyner, School Board 
Dr. Melody Hackney, Supt. School Board 
John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
 

School Facilities Committee Councilor 
Councilor 
Nelson G. Cuffey, School Board 
Wesley Joyner, School Board 
 

Technology Fund Committee Councilor 
Councilor 
Kamran Afzal, Police Chief 
Rick Newman, Commonwealth Atty 
Tommy Wells (Ward 5) 
 

Telecommunications Regulations Committee Councilor 
Councilor 
Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 
 

Virginia First Cities Coalition Councilor 
John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
Staff: Herbert Bragg 
 

Virginia’s Gateway Region Councilor 
 

Water Renewal Commission Councilor 
John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
Sands Anderson PC, City Attorney 
VAWCO representative 
Ashland Aqualon representative 
Westrock representative 
Staff: Jerry Byerly 
 

 



 
UB-2 

 



UB-3 



 
REGULAR 
MEETING 

 



 
R-1 

 
 







 
R-2 

 
 





 

 

 

 

 

 

R-3 
 

 

 

 



 
 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Johnny Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice-Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 
□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 
       

  
 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
 Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Request for appropriation of funds for Riverside Park repairs.    
 
ISSUE:  The remnants of hurricane Michael swept through central Virginia on October 12, 2018, 
causing wind damage, flooding, and knocking out power to thousands across the Commonwealth.  Two 
athletic field light poles at Riverside Park were brought down by the storm’s high winds, destroying the 
lights and crushing several sections of the field fencing.  The cost to replace the light fixtures, poles, and 
fencing totaled $14,473.  The facility is insured as a part of the City’s VML coverage but carries a 
$10,000 deductible for this type of damage.  The department is requesting funding for the amount of the 
deductible.   
  
RECOMMENDATION:  The City Administration recommends the appropriation of $10,00 for repair 
work at Riverside Park.   
 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER 
 
STAFF:   Aaron Reidmiller, Director of Recreation and Parks 
 
ATTACHMENT:  (1) Image of field damage   

 









R-4 



SUMMARY: 
Y N  Y N  
□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2 □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Johnny, Ward #3 □ □ Vice-Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 
□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 
Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment 
None (Does not apply) 

Order of Business: 
   Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing         
Presentation-Boards/Commissions 
Unfinished Business          
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees 

Action: 
Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
 Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Recreational Trails Program Grant (Riverwalk Phase II) 

ISSUE:  The Recreational Trails Program (RTP) is an 80-20, matching reimbursement program established 
for the purposes of providing and maintaining recreational trails.  It is funded through the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA), which establishes a program for allocating funds to the States for recreational trails. 
The agency responsible for administering the program in Virginia is the Department of Conservation and 
Recreation (DCR).  The RTP is a reimbursement program, meaning that the City will be required to finance the 
project while requesting periodic reimbursements.  The program allows a maximum 80% federal reimbursement 
of eligible project costs and requires a minimum 20% local match contribution.  The following City Council 
actions are requested in support of this project: 

1. Grant the City Manager the authorization to sign the Project Agreement – Preliminary Engineering in
the Grant Award Amount of $71,594.00 for the project scope of work as defined.  The agreement
shall be reviewed and approved as to form by the City Attorney prior to the City Manager’s signing.

2. Endorse the RTP – Riverwalk Connection by Council Resolution.  Project Number: VRT-316-D-170

This Project Agreement for Preliminary Engineering is for field exploration, environmental analysis, wetland 
study and permitting, civil and structural drawings and other related tasks to prepare for construction of the 
second phase of the Hopewell Riverwalk, a multimodal 8-foot wide boardwalk along the Appomattox River. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends to appropriate $14,318.80 from FY 19 Economic Development 
salary savings to fund the local match required for Preliminary Engineering.    

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER 

STAFF:   Aaron Reidmiller, Recreation and Parks Director 
Austin Anderson, Construction Manager  



 
 
 
 
 

 
RECREATIONAL TRAILS PROGRAM (RTP) 

FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION - FHWA 
VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND RECREATION 

 
Project Agreement – Preliminary Engineering 

 
Recipient:  City of Hopewell   
 
Project Title: Riverwalk Connection 
 
Project Number: VRT-316-D-170 
 
Project Period: Date of DCR Approval to June 30, 2020 
 
Project Scope of Work:  The City of Hopewell will complete the field exploration, trail drawings, task 
sequencing, equipment design, means and methods analysis, environmental analysis, civil and structural 
engineering, and wetland permitting in order to then construct the second phase of the Riverwalk 
Connection, a multimodal 8-foot wide boardwalk along the Appomattox River. RTP funding will allow 
the construction of 800 feet of trail. 
 
Grant Award Amount:     $71,594.00 
 
Funding Sources:    FY15 – FMIS Code M94E ($62,318.00) and FY18 – FMIS Code Z940 ($9,276.00) 
  
Upon signature of both parties below, the Department of Conservation and Recreation (DCR) and 
the City of Hopewell hereinafter referred to as the “Recipient” mutually agree to perform this 
agreement in accordance with the Recreational Trails Program as codified at 23 U.S.C. 206, the 
provisions and conditions of the FHWA Interim Guidance dated April 1, 1999, as amended, and 
with the regulations and requirements governing federal grants as stipulated in 2 CFR Parts 175, 
200, 215, 225 and Federal Highway Administration regulations as outlined in 49 CFR Parts 18, 20, 
29 and 32 (http://www.whitehouse.gov)  
 
In accepting this grant, evidenced by the signature below, the Recipient agrees to comply, adhere 
and abide with the following conditions of this grant agreement: 
 
Project Execution: 
 

1. Fiscal Procedures, Procurement and Bidding Procedures of the Recreational Trails Program as 
outlined in Recreational Trails Program Manual. 

 
2. Specific project application and amendments submitted for funding assistance under the 

Recreational Trails Program. 
 

3. All applicable state, federal and local laws, regulations and ordinances including but not limited 
to compliance with the Virginia Erosion & Sediment Control and Virginia Stormwater 
Management Laws & Regulations.  

 
4. The recipient is expected to have a project manager assigned to the project as the primary contact 

and a designated backup for communicating project status. 
 

5. Submission of Quarterly Progress Reports on status of grant implementation.  First report due no 
later than January 5, 2019. All correspondence pertaining to this project must reference State 
Project Number VRT-316-D-170. 

 
6. The Recipient agrees to contact both the appropriate state and/or federal agency and DCR if any 

unexpected environmental concerns are encountered during project construction. 
 

7. The recipient agrees to comply with the Virginia Seed Law to ensure no noxious weed seeds are 
introduced into the project area. 

 
 
 

Rochelle Altholz 
Deputy Director of  

Administration and Finance 
 

Russell Baxter 
Deputy Director of  

Soil and Water Conservation  
and Dam Safety 

 
Thomas L. Smith 

Deputy Director of Operations 
 

Matthew J. Strickler 
Secretary of Natural Resources 
 
Clyde E. Cristman 
Director 

http://www.whitehouse.gov/


8. The project period shall begin with the date of approval of the project agreement and shall
terminate at the end of the stated or amended project period unless the project is completed or
terminated sooner; in which event, the project shall end on the date of completion or termination.

9. The Recipient will cause work on the project to be commenced within a reasonable time after
receipt of notification that funds have been approved and assure that the project will be pursued to
completion with reasonable diligence.

10. The Recipient will insure that the facilities under its ownership, lease or supervision which shall
be utilized in the accomplishment of the project are not listed on the Environmental Protection
Agency's (EPA) list of Violating Facilities, pursuant to 40 CFR, Part 15.20 and that it will notify
DCR of the receipt of any communication from the Director of the EPA Office of Federal
Activities indicating that a facility to be utilized in the project is under consideration for listing by
the EPA.

11. The Recipient will comply with the terms of Title II and Title III, the Uniform Relocation
Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646), 94 Stat. 1894
(1970), and the applicable regulations and procedures implementing such Act for all real property
acquisitions and where applicable shall assure that the Act has been complied with for property
to be developed with assistance under the project agreement.

12. The Recipient will comply with the provisions of: Executive Order 11988, relating to evaluation
of flood hazards; Executive Order 11288, relating to the prevention, control, and abatement or
water pollution, and Executive Order 11990 relating to the protection of wetlands.

13. The Recipient will comply with the flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of
the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, Public Law 93-234, 87 Stat. 975, approved December
31, 1976. Section 102(a) requires the purchase of flood insurance in communities where such
insurance is available, as a condition for the receipt of any federal financial assistance for
construction or acquisition purposes, for use in any area that has been identified as an area having
special flood hazards by the Flood Insurance Administration of the Federal Emergency
Management Agency. The phrase "Federal financial assistance" includes any form of loan, grant,
guaranty, insurance payment, rebate, subsidy, disaster assistance loan or grant, or any other form
of direct or indirect Federal assistance.

14. The recipient will take necessary actions to ensure compliance with Section 106 of the National
Historic Preservation Act of 1966 as amended (16 U.S.C. 470), Executive Order 11593, and the
Archeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (16 U.S.C. 469a-1 et seq.) by (a) consulting
with the State Historic Preservation Officer on the conduct of investigations, as necessary, to
identify properties listed in or eligible for inclusion in the National Register of Historic Places
that are subject to effects (see CFR Part 800.8) by the activity, and notifying the Federal grantor
agency of the existence of any such properties, and by (b) complying with all requirements
established by the Federal grantor agency to avoid or mitigate adverse effects upon such
properties.

15. The Recipient shall secure completion of the work in accordance with approved construction
plans and specifications, and shall secure compliance with all applicable Federal, State, and local
laws and regulations.

16. The Recipient will comply with Executive Order 12432, "Minority Business Enterprise
Development as follows (a) place minority business firms on bidder's mailing lists, (b) solicit
these firms whenever they are potential sources of supplies, equipment, construction, or services,
(c) where feasible, divide total requirements into smaller needs, and set delivery schedules that
will encourage participation by these firms. The recipient will comply with the Disadvantaged
Business Enterprise (DBE) Program policy and procedures as outlined in the attached RTP DBE
policy. DCR and the Federal Highway Administration are committed to the objectives of this
policy and encourage all Recipients of its grants and cooperative agreements to take affirmative
steps to ensure such fairness.

17. Purchase of supplies, equipment or services must be in accordance with the Virginia Public
Procurement Act and all applicable state, local and federal laws.

18. Bid documentation must contain notice that the purchase or service is being offered or performed
in accordance with the Recreational Trails Program and the Compliance Guidance in the United
States Department of Transportation regulations in 49 CFR and applicable parts 18.19 and 26, as
amended.



19. Bid documentation must be administratively reviewed by DCR prior to awarding and signing of 
contracts.  Prior to any land disturbances associated with the project, a copy of the advertisement 
for bid, the bid spreadsheet showing the lowest bidder, evidence of the good faith effort for 
including  DBEs in the bid process and a copy of the executed contract must be submitted to 
DCR.  The expectation is that the award will go to the lowest bidder. Federal procurement laws 
prohibit negotiation with the lowest bidder. If only one bid response is received then the project 
must be re-bid. Project work shall not be awarded to any vendor which is debarred or suspended 
or is otherwise excluded for or ineligible for participation in Federal assistance programs under 
Executive Order 12549, “Debarment and Suspension.” All vendors and contractors providing 
supplies, materials, goods, equipment, services, etc. for the project must be licensed in Virginia as 
required. 

 
20. Recipient must adhere to 23 U.S.C. 206; 2 CFR 200; the Commonwealth of Virginia’s 

construction procurement requirements; the Buy America Act; and the federal requirements 
outlined in form FHWA 1273. If contradictions occur the Recipient must communicate them to 
DCR for consultation with FHWA for instructions on how to proceed. Architectural and 
engineering firms are to be informed that all projects are to be constructed in compliance with all 
applicable state and local laws and regulations, FHWA 1273, and Buy America Executive Order 
13788. 

 
21. The recipient bears sole responsibility for ensuring that all contracts are in compliance with 

federal and state laws concerning the solicitation of supplies, equipment and services.   
 

22. Copies of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) document (categorical exclusion, 
environmental assessment, or environmental impact statement), the National Historic 
Preservation Act section 106, the Endangered Species Act section 7, all permits (land disturber, 
stormwater management, erosion and sediment control, Virginia Department of Transportation 
right of way permit for ingress/egress and travel of ATVS across public road right of way, 
nationwide, local building, etc.) issued for the project are required to be submitted to DCR for the 
grant file.   
 

23. The Recipient agrees that DCR’s waiver or failure to enforce or require performance of any term 
or conditions of this project agreement or DCR’s waiver of any particular breach of this project 
agreement by the Recipient extends to that instance only. Such a waiver or failure to enforce is 
not and shall not be a waiver of any of the terms or condition of this project agreement or a 
waiver of any other breaches of the project agreement by the Recipient and does not bar DCR 
from asserting any and all rights and/or remedies it has or might have against the Recipient under 
this project agreement or by law. 
 

24. The Recipient understands that the Recreational Trails Program is a federally funded program 
subject to actions by congress and regulatory changes which may impact the execution of this 
project by the Recipient. DCR will work with the Recipient in adjusting to any changes that occur 
during the life of this project. 

 
Record Retention:  
 

1. Financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other records pertinent to this 
grant shall be retained in accordance with 49 CFR for a period of three years; except the records 
shall be retained beyond the three-year period if audit findings have not been resolved. The 
retention period starts from the date of the final expenditure report for the project. 

 
2. The Federal Highway Administration, Comptroller of the United States of America, DCR or any 

of their authorized representatives shall have access to any books, documents, papers, and records 
of the recipient which are pertinent to this Recreational Trails Program grant project for the 
purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts. 

 
Project Termination:  
 

1. DCR may terminate the project in whole, or in part, at any time before the date of completion, 
whenever it is determined that the Recipient has failed to comply with the conditions of the 
project agreement. DCR will promptly notify the Recipient in writing of the determination and 
the reasons for the termination, together with the effective date.  
 

2. The recipient understands that terminated projects must return any RTP funding received to DCR 
for return to the FHWA. 

 
3. Termination by the Recipient either for cause or for convenience requires that any and all RTP 

reimbursement payments must be returned to DCR for return to the FHWA. 
 



Reimbursement Documentation: 
 

1. The recipient understands all funding associated with the Recreational Trails Program is 
federal funding made possible from the Federal Highway Administration. 
Reimbursements are paid on an 80% matching reimbursement basis not to exceed the 
actual out of pocket expense or the approved total award amount provided adequate 
documentation is submitted by the Recipient to justify expenditures incurred and paid. The 
Recipient understands that no Commonwealth of Virginia funding is associated with this 
project and no Commonwealth of Virginia funding will be made available for this project 
under any circumstances.  

2. The recipients understands that reimbursement by the Recreational Trails Program is not a right. 
Reimbursements are contingent upon satisfactorily completing the authorized scope of work 
within the approved performance period and submitting required documentation for 
reimbursement. 
 

3. Each reimbursement request must include: 
 

a) A transmittal letter/performance report describing the work completed, challenges, 
amount of DBE participation in the project (if any), a breakdown by percentage of the 
total cash, donation, volunteer or in-kind work involved. The transmittal should include 
the reimbursement amount being requested.  
 

b) Receipts, delivery tickets and packing slips for materials and supplies purchased. This is 
required for all projects including contractor performed work. 

 
c) Invoices/Schedule of Values (SOV) itemizing charges. All invoices/SOV should reference 

the RTP project. Invoices/Schedule of Values must be detailed with an explanation for 
how the purchases relate to the RTP authorized work. Invoices/Schedule of Values with 
expenses for materials and supplies without corresponding delivery tickets, packing slips, 
etc. will not be honored and will be ineligible for reimbursement. When invoices contain 
other purchases not related to the RTP project, the purchases applying to the RTP project 
must be clearly identified. 
 

d) All invoice/SOV expenditures must have an explanation for how the material, supply or 
service relates to the RTP authorized work. 

 
e) Time cards signed by both the employee and supervisor are required. Time cards are 

needed for contract labor performed work, force account performed work and volunteer 
performed work. A description indicating how the work performed by the employee ties to 
the RTP authorized work is needed. “Trail work” is not acceptable. Unsigned timecards by 
either the employee or supervisor are ineligible for seeking reimbursement. Incomplete 
timecards are ineligible for seeking reimbursement. Unsigned and/or incomplete volunteer 
time cards and/or logs are ineligible for seeking reimbursement. Timecards/volunteer logs 
for multiple individuals that appear to be in the same handwriting will be deemed 
ineligible.  

 
f) All expenditures must have an accompanying proof of payment in the form of image of 

cleared check (front and back of check), credit card receipt, payroll ledger or pay stub 
copies, etc. Internal source documents are not sufficient to prove an outlay of funds. 

 
g) Holiday, Annual, Sick leave and Overtime may not be charged to the RTP project. 

 
h) Work logs indicating daily tasks completed for the RTP project. Daily work logs are 

needed for force account, volunteer and contract built projects. 
 

i) Materials notebook. The materials used on any project must be documented as 
approved materials meeting specifications and documented as to the quantities used. 
The materials notebook must contain the total quantities of materials incorporated into 
the project including a description of the material, the material supplier and 
manufacturer. Supporting documentation such as delivery tickets, test reports and 
certifications demonstrating conformance to specifications is required to demonstrate 
compliance with Presidential Order 13788 and Buy America Act. The Contractor’s 
quality control manager and the local project manager must sign the materials 
notebook. Self-built projects require material books and should be signed by the 
project manager. 

 
 



j) Equipment records must clearly identify machinery, date, time, name of operator, rate of 
the equipment and description how the equipment was used in accordance with the 
authorized RTP scope of work. If discrepancies exists between the hours on the 
operator’s time sheets and the equipment records explanations are required to determine 
eligibility for reimbursement purposes. 

 
k) Buy America documentation must be submitted to support iron or steel products used in the 

RTP project. Documentation includes, but is not limited to, certification by the 
manufacturer, mill paperwork, etc. Reimbursement documentation must identify all iron, 
steel, and aluminum parts incorporated into the project with the dollar value of each item as 
delivered to the project site. Failure to demonstrate compliance with the Buy America Act 
and Executive Order 13788 will result in no reimbursement being made to the recipient.  

 
l) Documentation providing a summary of the procurement on the RTP project including the 

Recipient’s effort to including DBEs in the project. This documentation includes but is not 
limited to the final Invitation For Bid, Project Manual, bid spreadsheet showing lowest, 
responsive and responsible bidder and executed contract. 

 
m) Each reimbursement request must be accompanied by a signed Virginia Recreational 

Trails Program Reimbursement Certification Form. 
 

4. The recipient understands the RTP program requires documentation to justify all expenditures 
associated with the project before reimbursement can be authorized. Each RTP project is situation 
specific and additional information to what is listed in this project agreement above may be 
requested to receive reimbursement. The failure to provide suitable documentation for 
authorization from the FHWA for payment can result in the inability to be reimbursed for work 
performed, either in whole or in part. In situations where ambiguity exists in determining how an 
expense related to the authorized RTP scope of work no reimbursement will be possible. In 
situations where ambiguity exists regarding the eligibility of an expense no reimbursement will 
be allowed. 
 

5. A partial or final reimbursement must be submitted by July 15, 2019. A final reimbursement must 
be submitted by the end of the grant agreement. Failure to do this results in project showing as 
“inactive” and can result in rescission of funding and termination of this agreement. 

 
6. Reimbursements are normally processed in thirty (30) days once documentation has been 

received and verified by both DCR and the FHWA. 
 

7. Projects utilizing other federal funds in addition to the Recreational Trails Program funding must 
demonstrate adherence to the 95% rule which states that the total federal dollars on a project 
cannot exceed 95%. Each reimbursement request must adhere to this rule. Other federal 
funding added to the project after RTP approval will not be allowed as a match for the RTP 
project and expenditures associated with the other federal funding will be ineligible for 
reimbursement. Federal funds from other sources added after RTP approval could result in 
rescission of the RTP award when the programs rules and regulations would prohibit the multiple 
federal funding sources. 
 

8. Twenty percent (20%) of the award amount is held in retainage until the work described in the 
scope of work is completed and satisfactorily inspected by DCR. 
 

9. RTP recipients with PE projects unable to go to construction within two years of the completion 
of this PE grant are required to return all funding to DCR for return to the FHWA. 
 

Special Conditions 
 

1. The Facility Life assigned to this project scope of work after construction funding has 
been added to the project is 30 years beginning with the date of final reimbursement. 

 
Performance Period 
 

1. The scope of work for this project agreement is expected to be complete, site inspected, and 
financially closed out by June 30, 2020. Recipients unable to meet this deadline must contact DCR 
no less than 90 days prior to project expiration.  
 

2. Extensions are not a right and will only be considered in accordance with the extension policy as 
outlined in the 2018 Recreational Trails Program grant application manual. An extension will only 
be considered due to documented severe weather conditions, unexpected staff turnover during the 
project performance period and delays due to unexpected environmental concerns. 



 
Provision of a Drug-Free Workplace  
 
In compliance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (43 CFR Part 12, Subpart D), upon signing 
the Recreational Trails Program project agreement, the Recipient certifies that it must:  

 
1. Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, 

possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Recipient’s workplace and 
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition; 

 
2. Establish an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:  

   
a) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
b) The Recipient’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
c) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs, and 
d) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the 

workplace; 
 

3. Require that each employee be engaged in the performance of a grant be given a copy of the 
statement required by paragraph (a);  
 

4. Notify the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of employment 
under the grant, the employee will: 
  

a. Abide by the terms of the statement; 
b. Notify the employer in writing of his or her convictions for a violation of a criminal drug 

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction. 
 

5. Notify the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph (d) 
(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers of convicted 
employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity 
the convicted employee was working, unless the FHWA designates a central point for the receipt of 
such notices. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;  
 

6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph 
(d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted;  

 
a) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including 

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended or  

b) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or 
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law 
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;  

 
7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of 

paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f).  
 
Non–Discrimination 
 

1. All activities pursuant to this Agreement shall be in compliance with the requirements of 
Executive Order 11246, as amended; Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, (78 
Stat. 252; 42 U.S.C. §§2000d et seq.); Title V, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended, (87 Stat. 394; 29 U.S.C. §794); the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (89 Stat. 728; 42 
U.S.C. §§6101 et seq.); and with all other federal laws and regulations prohibiting 
discrimination on grounds of race, color, sexual orientation, national origin, disabilities, 
religion, age, or sex. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Lobbying Prohibition 
 

1. 18 U.S.C. §1913, Lobbying with Appropriated Moneys, as amended by Public Law 107–273, 
Nov. 2, 2002 – No part of the money appropriated by any enactment of Congress shall, in the 
absence of express authorization by Congress, be used directly or indirectly to pay for any 
personal service, advertisement, telegram, telephone, letter, printed or written matter, or other 
device, intended or designed to influence in any manner a Member of Congress, a jurisdiction, 
or an official of any government, to favor, adopt, or oppose, by vote or otherwise, any 
legislation, law, ratification, policy, or appropriation, whether before or after the introduction 
of any bill, measure, or resolution proposing such legislation, law, ratification, policy, or 
appropriation; but this shall not prevent officers or employees of the United States or of its 
departments or agencies from communicating to any such Members or official, at his request, or 
to Congress or such official, through the proper official channels, requests for legislation, law, 
ratification, policy, or appropriations which they deem necessary for the efficient conduct of the 
public business, or from making any communication whose prohibition by this section might, in 
the opinion of the Attorney General, violate the Constitution or interfere with the conduct of 
foreign policy, counter–intelligence, intelligence, or national security activities. Violations of 
this section shall constitute violations of section 1352(a) of title 31.  
 

 
In witness whereof, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as of the date entered below. 
 
 
Commonwealth of Virginia 
The Department of Conservation and Recreation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By________________________________________________ Date_____________ 
      Danette Poole 
             Planning and Recreation Resources Division Director 
 
 
 
 
(GRANT RECIPIENT NAME HERE) 
 
 
 
By_______________________________________________ 
   Print Name  
 
 
 
 
   ________________________________________________ Date_____________ 
   Signature 
 
 
   ________________________________________________ 

   Title 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

REPORTS  
OF THE 

CITY 
ATTORNEY 

 

 



















 

 

REPORTS  
OF THE 

CITY CLERK 
 

 



 
REPORTS OF THE 

CITY COUNCIL 
• COMMITTEES 

• INDIVIDUAL REQUEST 
• ANY OTHER COUNCILOR 



CITIZEN/ 
COUNCILOR 

REQUEST  



CCR-1 



 
CCR-2 

 



 
CCR-3 

 



 

 

 

 

 

CCR-4 
 



CCR-5 



 
COUNCIL  

COMMUNICATIONS 

 



 
ADJOURN 

 
 


	ADP7450.tmp
	VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND RECREATION
	Project Agreement – Preliminary Engineering


	ADPCF9.tmp
	UCommunications from Citizens




